NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE PROTOCOL COMMITTEE
TO BE HELD BY REMOTE VIDEO CONFERENCING ON THURSDAY 28 APRIL 2022 AT 8.00 AM

AGENDA
THURSDAY 28 APRIL 2022
PAGE
1

Minutes of the meeting held on 24th March 2022 and matters arising.

2

Report on the City Twinning Process

3

Corporate IT Security

6 - 12

4

Approval for Councillor attendance at Suck Valley Way Conference 2022 - "Rural
regeneration post pandemic: the challenges and opportunities to unlocking our
potential" - in The Abbey Hotel, Roscommon on 27th and 28th April 2022.

13 - 14

5

City Hall Illumination Requests:
a)

International Pregnancy and Infant Loss Remembrance Day on 15 October 2022

b)

Trigeminal Neuralgia Awareness Day on October 7th 2022

6

Manager's Report

7

Motion in the name of Cllr. Dermot Lacey:
“This Committee agrees to discuss the decision of DCC management not to
put forward an Executive nominee or an elected representative as nominee
to the Board of the St. Patrick's festival as communicated by the Assistant
Chief Executive, Richard Shakespeare in his response to Question 10 April
City Council meeting (details attached) and to consider how such decisions
should be made in future.”

3-5

15

8

Motion in the name of Cllr. Damian O'Farrell:
“That this Protocol Committee reviews the possibility of reducing the ‘20
years after death’ protocol whereby DCC waits for twenty years after an
individual has passed away before considering whether or not to honour
that person, whether for example a memorial or a park or road naming etc.
Separately, and in view of time lag that a register and / or waiting list of
approved nominations be considered in order to formalise and record
decisions.”

9

A.O.B.

10

Proposed date of next meeting: 2nd June 2022 at 8am

Ruth Dowling
A/Senior Executive Officer
25th April 2022

MINUTES OF THE PROTOCOL COMMITTEE MEETING HELD
ON THURSDAY 24 MARCH 2022

1.) Minutes of the meeting held on 3rd March 2022 and matters arising.
Order: The minutes as amended were agreed.
2.) Upgrade of Councillor Facilities in City Hall
Oiseen Kelly from City Architect’s gave a report on the upgrade of Councillor facilities
in City Hall. She confirmed that phase 1 works on the new party rooms on the ground
floor were due for completion this week. Phase 2 works on the meeting room and
pods was due for completion shortly. Phase 3 which involves the installation of new
Mechanical and Electrical system for the ground floor will be completed later in the
year. It was confirmed that the new party rooms would be allocated to the Social
Democrats and Sinn Fein.
The Members requested that the security locks on the party rooms on the upper
floors be upgraded as part of the schedule of works.
Ruth will contact the Members to let them know when the rooms are available to be
occupied.
3.) Naming of New Developments
Richard Shakespeare gave an overview of the position with regards the naming of
new developments and the role of the Area Committee’s. The Members were
supportive of the Managers proposals and requested that they be circulated to all
Councillors.
Order: Report Noted.
4.) Format of Council Meetings post Covid Restrictions
It was agreed that the City Council and Area Committee meetings will take place in
the Council Chamber in hybrid format from May onwards. North Central Area and
North West Area would each decide how they wished to proceed as they do not have
webcasting facilities in the Area Civic Offices.
Order: Noted.
5.) Twinning with Kyiv
Grainne Kelly informed the Members that a report on the Twinning process and
criteria would be brought to the next meeting of the Protocol Committee and that
twinning with Kyiv could be reviewed in the context of that report.
The Members acknowledged that the desire to twin with Kyiv was primarily to show
solidarity with the Ukrainian people and given the current circumstances that the
practical implementation would be a long term process.
Order: Noted.

Page 3

6.) Request from the "Shine a Light Campaign" for the illumination of City Hall on
17th May 2022 in support World Neurofibromatosis Awareness Day
Order: Request Agreed.
7.) Manager's Report
a) Overpayment of Expenses
The Manager informed the Members that the error in the calculation of the expenses
came about due to the misinterpretation of a Department of Local Government
circular which was issued in 2018. She apologised for the error and assured
Members that the new system of expenses had been rigorously reviewed and would
be audited at the end of the year to ensure compliance with the regulations.
Following a discussion the Members requested that the Manager write to the Head of
Finance to express their disappointment and frustration over the fact that the
administrative error which led to the overpayment had occurred in 2018, yet it was not
detected until the end of 2021, despite annual audits by the Local Government
Auditor in 2019 and 2020. They felt that had the error been detected earlier the
negative impact on the elected Members would have been greatly reduced. They
requested that the matter be raised with the Local Government Auditor.
Order: Noted.
b) Presentation on Platform for Combatting Online Abuse
The Members declined the request from this private company to present to the
Members on this issue.
Order: Noted.
8.) A.O.B.
 The Members expressed their appreciation for all those that worked on the St.
Patrick’s Day Parade and Festival which had passed off very successfully.
 Cllr. Heney requested that the presentation on Human Trafficking given to the Dublin
City Joint policing Committee by An Garda Siochána should also be made to the full
City Council. The Lord Mayor agreed to consider the request and discuss with Group
Leaders.
 Cllr. Ó Muirí noted the search functionality on the Modern Gov application was not
adequate and that is was difficult to retrieve reports on specific items such as Part 8
applications. The Manager agreed to review the issue and report back to the
Committee.
 Cllr. Flynn requested that a report be brought before the Committee on DCC IT
security and the measures in place to protect the IT systems and infrastructure.
Order: Noted.
9.) Proposed date of next meeting: 28th April 2022 at 8am via Zoom
Order: The date of the next meeting was agreed for 28th April 2022.

Councillor Anne Feeney
Chairperson
Thursday 24 March 2022

Page 4

Attendance:
Members:
Anne Feeney (Chairperson)
Racheal Batten
Joe Costello
Dermot Lacey
Briege MacOscar
Michael Pidgeon

Members:
Lord Mayor Alison Gilliland
Anthony Connaghan
Mannix Flynn
Darcy Lonergan
Naoise Ó Muirí
Noeleen Reilly

Officers
Ruth Dowling
Richard Shakespeare

Michael Gallagher

Page 5

Members:
Donna Cooney
Deirdre Heney
Micheál MacDonncha
Cat O'Driscoll

Oiseen Kelly

ICT Security Update to Protocol Committee

Page 6

Brian Curtis ICT Manager

Introduction
• A range of High profile Cyber attacks have impacted
on Government Agencies over the last twelve
months.
• Presentation Contents
Page 7

•
•
•
•
•

Recent Cyber attacks
DCC Response to these Attacks
Current Security profile in DCC
NIST Framework
Future Impact of Cyber Security

• This is a non technical and high level presentation

Recent Cyber Attacks impacting
on Government Agencies
• Note that there is a continuous attacks on all
organisations at all times. More sophisticated with
greater impacts now.
• The HSE suffered Ransomware attack
Page 8

– Impacted on business services
– High Cost
– Data loss

• Microsoft exchange mail for any organisation with
email exposed to the internet.
• 2nd Microsoft Exchange weakness led to another
critical patching
• Log4j major vulnerability

DCC Response to these Attacks
•
•

DCC not impacted by these attacks
Incidents managed by

Page 9

–
–
–
–
–

•
•
•
•
•

Security Team
Technical Teams
External support teams
SOC / SIEM managed service 24 x 7
Central government CERT team

Attack vectors identified
Scanning of Indicators of compromise
Critical patches installed
Staff awareness raised
Exchange not a risk to DCC as design based on security did not
allow direct connection to internet for mail

Current Security Profile in DCC
•
•
•
•
Page 10

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

DCC has a dedicated security team
DCC has a dedicated security budget
Staff awareness key part of security profile
Utilising external security companies for evaluation of new
systems and existing systems
DCC has an external managed SOC / SIEM (security
operational and logging system)
Enterprise grade backup
Regular internal and External vulnerability scans
Strong Patching policy
LAN segmentation
Security in depth by design
Strong end point protection
Upgrading of older software and hardware that cannot be
secured

NIST Framework

Page 11

• DCC implements the NIST Framework
• Presumption that not all cyber attacks can be
prevented
• Detection software and processes in place
• Incident response plan in place to respond
• Security profile of an organisation is linked to its
business risk management approach

Future impacts of Cyber Security

Page 12

• Increased complexity of attacks expected
• Impact is now operational risk as well as data loss
and Reputational risk
• Increased level of specialised Resources and Budget
will be required into the future
• Availability of these resources in government is
challenging
• EU NIS directive will add Government services to
the security level of Essential services
• Increased use of cloud solutions adds to the
resources required to secure DCC data and
operations

SUCK VALLEY WAY CONFERENCE 2022
(with the support of AILG)

“Rural regeneration post pandemic: the challenges and opportunities to
unlocking our potential”

The Abbey Hotel, Roscommon
27th and 28th April 2022

Official opening and welcome address of the inaugural Suck Valley Way
Conference on Wednesday 27th April 2022.

REGISTRATION
4 pm, Wednesday 27th April
9 am, Thursday 28th April

FEE: €130

__________________________________________________________________________________

Contact: Cllr. Anthony Waldron, Chairperson, The Suck Valley Way
Ph: 086 7866774.

Email: svwconference2022@gmail.com

https://www.discoversuckvalleyway.ie/

Page 13

Suck Valley Way Conference Agenda
Day 1: Wednesday 27th April

10 a.m: “Unlocking our tourism
potential”

4pm: Registration
11 a.m: “Come West along the road –
employment and enterprise
opportunities”

5pm: Official opening of Conference
Key note speakers are invited to address the
theme of the day.

1pm: Lunch

6 pm: “Regeneration in the
West of Ireland”

2pm: “The building blocks of rural
sustainability”

7.30pm: Hot buffet for delegates

7.30 pm: Meal for delegates

--------------------------------------------------Day 2: Thursday 28th April

--------------------------------------------------------Speakers who will be addressing the
conference over the two days, include:

9 a.m: Registration

9.30: Introductory presentation






The themes of the day will be addressed by
representatives from the following sectors:
 Industry
 Enterprise and Business
 Manufacturing and Production
 Tourism, Recreation and Sport

Paddy Mathews (Failte Ireland/Hidden
Heartlands),
Jarleth O’ Dwyer (Clare Eco-Tourism),
Pyers O’ Connor Nash (Clonalis House),
Michael Tobin (AIT),
Joe Fenwick (NUIG),
And reps of Harmac Medical Products
& Athlone Laboratories Ltd.

ACCOMMODATION INFORMATION
Abbey Hotel, Galway Road, Ballypheasan, Roscommon. F42 F992.
(special delegate rate of €80 B&B, based on single occupancy)

PH. 090 662 6240

Gleason’s restaurant & rooms, Market Square, Roscommon

PH. 090 662 9654

Jackson’s restaurant & Accommodation, Harrison Centre, The Square,
Cloonbrackna, Roscommon, F42 H968

PH. 090 666 5599

Hannons Hotel, Athlone Rd, Acres, Roscommon

PH. 090 663 7644

Ross House, B&B, Ardnanagh, Roscommon

PH. 086 3797760

Tully’s hotel, Main Street, Castlerea, Co Roscommon

PH. 094 962 0200

Percy French Hotel, Farnbeg, Strokestown, Co Roscommon

PH. 071 963 3300

Hodson Bay Hotel, Roscommon Road, Athlone, Co Roscommon

PH. 090 644 2005

Page 14

Question to the Chief Executive
Q.10
CE

Council Meeting 4th April 2022

COUNCILLOR DERMOT LACEY
To ask the Chief Executive why Dublin City Council did not nominate a replacement
Director to the Board of Feilte Dhuibh Linne Cuideachta Faoi Theorainn Rathaiochta
(St. Patricks Festival Company) in 2019, if that decision was communicated to the Arts
and Culture SPC, if the elected members of the Council were afforded an opportunity
to consider that decision and to nominate an elected members to serve on the Board
and to issue a full statement on all the circumstances surrounding this matter.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPLY:
The Executive is of the belief that it is inappropriate to have a Board Member on a
private company that produces an event that also receives significant financial support
from the City Council. To avoid the potential for a conflict of interest it was decided that
a member of the Executive would not act as a Director of the company.
The decision was not communicated to the SPC and the position was not offered to
the elected members to fill as the positon has traditionally been filled by a member of
the Executive. The Lord Mayor is a member of the Board of the St. Patrick’s Festival
Company.

Contact:
Email:

Richard Shakespeare, Assistant Chief Executive
richard.shakespeare@dublincity.ie

Page 15

